
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, November 17, 2014

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Introduction of Beloit Public Library Director Nick Dimassis (Laatz)

b. Proclamation recognizing the Beloit Memorial High School Concert Choir (Luebke)

c. Presentation of the City and Vision Partner’s Rebranding Program (Monica
Krysztopa, Executive Director, Visit Beloit)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-2,
Central Business District – Fringe, zoning district for the property located at 658 Fourth
Street (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0

b. Resolution amending the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Budget (Christensen)

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of November 3, 2014 (LeMire)

b. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a drive-up automated teller machine
(ATM) in a CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the property located at 419
Pleasant Street (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

c. Resolution approving a four-lot Certified Survey Map for property located at 2600
Coyote Run (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0

d. Resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C13-15, Ute Standpipe
Repainting (Flesch)

e. Resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C14-06, Ritsher Street
Sanitary Sewer Relay (Flesch)



7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance to amend various sections of 17.06 of the Code of General
Ordinance of the City of Beloit pertaining to the regulation of Solid Waste (Walsh)
First Reading, suspend the rules for Second Reading

8. APPOINTMENTS

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution authorizing reporting under the Securities and Exchange Commission’s
Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative (Miller)

b. Resolution declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from proceeds of
borrowing (Miller)

c. Resolution approving Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease with New
Cingular Wireless for space on water tower site at 138 Mill Street (Krueger)

d. Resolution approving Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease with New
Cingular Wireless for space on water tower site at 2995 Cranston Road (Krueger)

e. Resolution adopting a Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Beloit and
the Wisconsin Professional Police Association/Law Enforcement Employee Relations
Division (WPPA/LEER) (Simpson)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: November 12, 2014
Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City of Beloit City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.

http://www.beloitwi.gov/


WHEREAS, the Performing Arts Department at Beloit Memorial High School offers six curricular choirs classes
including Concert Choir, Treble Choir, Men’s Chorus, Women’s Choral Society, Varsity Women’s Choir, and Knights
Choir; two extracurricular choirs are also available. “One Voice” is a female a cappella group, and “The Roosters” is a
mixed contemporary a cappella and vocal jazz ensemble; and

WHEREAS, the Spark Plug Award was created for and presented to vocal teacher Jacob Truby by the School
District of Beloit for reinvigorating a department and body of students; and

WHEREAS, under the tutelage of vocal teacher Jacob Truby, enrollment in choir at BMHS has grown from 110
students to more than 250 students in three years; and

WHEREAS, the most auditioned choral ensemble, the BMHS Concert Choir, was selected as the lone choir to
perform at the prestigious 2014 Wisconsin State Music Conference; and

WHEREAS, the Concert Choir collaborates with the Rock River Philharmonic, UW-Rock County Choirs,
consistently receives superior rankings from WSMA Concert Group Festivals, and was the featured choir at UW-Eau
Claire’s Clearwater Choral Festival; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and proper to recognize the members of the Beloit Memorial Concert Choir for their
contributions to arts and culture in the City of Beloit.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Beloit expresses their praise
and admiration of Beloit Memorial High School’s Concert Choir; and does hereby proclaim Monday, November 17th as:

“BELOIT MEMORIAL HIGH SCHOOL CONCERT CHOIR DAY”

in the City of Beloit and encourages all citizens and fellow students of the School District of Beloit to recognize their
outstanding achievements and talents.

Presented this 17th day of November, 2014.

_______________________________________
Mark Spreitzer, City Council President

ATTEST:

______________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A PICK-UP WINDOW IN A CBD-2,

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT- FRINGE, AT 658 FOURTH STREET

WHEREAS, the application of Peter Gabriele for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-
2, Central Business District- Fringe, for the property located at 658 Fourth Street, having been considered by the City
Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having
been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication filed in the City Clerk’s office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County,
Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-2, Central Business District-
Fringe, for the property located at 658 Fourth Street in the City of Beloit, for the following described premises:

The Northern 66 feet of Lot 22 of Tenneys Addition, located in the City of Beloit, County of Rock,
State of Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.2000 acre, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the following
conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the pick-up window and drive-thru lane at the subject property, with the
restaurant being established in the existing structure at 648 Fourth Street.

2. Site Plan Review and Architectural Review are required prior to beginning work on this project.
3. The applicant shall maintain a minimum of three (3) stacking spaces for the pick-up window.
4. The applicant must coordinate with Charter concerning their existing infrastructure in the right-of-way of St.

Lawrence Avenue.
5. A Traffic Impact Analysis must be completed, reviewed, and approved by the City Engineer prior to the start of

work.
6. The parking area on the west side of the existing building on the subject property is not allowed.
7. “One Way/Do Not Enter” signs must be installed at the St. Lawrence Avenue curb-cut.
8. Traffic Review Committee approval is required for the proposed terrace parking on St. Lawrence Avenue.
9. If approved, the applicant shall grant a sidewalk and public parking easement. The applicant will be responsible

for the cost of these improvements.
10. All improvements shown on the site plan must be completed by November 17, 2015.
11. This Conditional Use Permit does not allow for an outdoor seating area.
12. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission

and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, Council President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 658 Fourth Street

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Peter Gabriele has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-2, Central
Business District- Fringe, for the property located at 658 Fourth Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant has proposed the redevelopment of the existing buildings at 648 & 658 Fourth Street. Palermo’s Pizza is

anticipated to move into a space at 648 Fourth Street. The applicant is seeking approval for a pick-up window in which
the drive-thru lane would be on the property located at 658 Fourth Street.

 This proposed pick-up window would be located in the existing garage structure at 658 Fourth Street. This will be used
for pick-up purposes only, not for ordering.

 The minimum stacking spaces needed for a pick-up window is three. A by-pass lane is also required. This site
meets these minimum requirements.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on November 5, 2014. The Plan Commission voted unanimously (7-0)
to recommend approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to twelve conditions.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: November 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2014-08

Applicant: Peter Gabriele Owner: Peter Gabriele Location: 658 Fourth Street

Existing Zoning: CBD-2, Central
Business District- Fringe

Existing Land Use: Vacant Building Parcel Size: .20 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Peter Gabriele has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-2, Central Business
District- Fringe, for the property located at 658 Fourth Street. The applicant intends to rehab a portion of the existing building at
648 Fourth Street into a restaurant. The pick-up window and drive-thru area for this will be located at 658 Fourth Street. While
the restaurant is permitted, the pick-up window requires a Conditional Use Permit.

Key Issues:
 The applicant has proposed the redevelopment of the existing buildings at 648 & 658 Fourth Street. Palermo’s Pizza is

anticipated to move into a space at 648 Fourth Street. The applicant is seeking approval for a pick-up window in which
the drive-thru lane would be on the property located at 658 Fourth Street. The attached Location & Zoning Map, as well
as the proposed site layout shows this configuration.

 This proposed pick-up window would be located in the existing garage structure at 658 Fourth Street. This will be used
for pick-up purposes only, not for ordering.

 Eventually, the applicant plans to open a small store and ice cream shop in the existing building at 658 Fourth Street.
This will have an outdoor seating area facing St. Lawrence Avenue. A Conditional Use Permit will be required for the
seating area in the future.

 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The adjacent
zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: C-3, Community Commercial District; Office Uses
o South: CBD-1, Central Business District- Core; Vacant Building (Proposed Redevelopment Site)
o East: CBD-1, Central Business District- Core; Office Uses
o West: CBD-1, Central Business District- Core; Storage Warehouse

 According to Section 8-112 of the Zoning Ordinance, restaurant pick-up lanes shall include at least 3 stacking spaces.
The proposed layout has an adequate number of stacking spaces.

 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the property receives the full range of municipal services.
 The drive-thru provides one-way access from Fourth Street onto St. Lawrence Avenue. A bypass lane is required and is

proposed at the east side of the property. The entry for the bypass lane will be the same as the entry for the drive-thru.
The lane will then loop around east to offer an exit onto Fourth Street. Engineering has concerns about the close
proximity to the intersection of St. Lawrence Avenue and Fourth Street. Therefore, a Traffic Impact Analysis is required.

 While no parking is required in the CBD-2 zoning district, terrace parking has been proposed. This will require approval
from Traffic Review. This will also require a sidewalk easement since the sidewalk will be relocated onto the applicant’s
property.

 The applicant has also proposed additional parking on the west side of the lot at the rear of the building. The one-way
nature of the drive-thru creates access issues for this parking area. The proposed parking area recently had decorative
stamped concrete poured, which is not conducive to a parking area. Also, there is only room for one-way access out of
the lot at the curb-cut on St. Lawrence Avenue. Since the applicant does not own or have an easement for the western-
half of the curb-cut area, staff is recommending a condition of approval that removes this parking area.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have the following comments:
o Charter has lines and cables in the right-of-way on St. Lawrence Avenue that would have to be worked around

if this area is disturbed.
o Engineering is requiring a Traffic Impact Analysis, as described above.
o The Downtown Beloit Association is in support of this project and of the staff recommendation to remove the

parking area on site.
 The attached Public Notice was sent to eight (8) nearby property owners, which has not resulted in any comments.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on
the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 The proposed uses will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals,
comfort, or general welfare. These uses are also compatible in this developed commercial area.



b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate
vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The subject property is located near manufacturing and other commercial uses. Any additional
traffic, noise, or glare generated by this development is compatible with existing conditions.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood of
the subject property;

 The proposed use will not diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. It will likely
increase property values due to increased economic activity and exterior appearance.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of the surrounding property;

 This is an urbanized area and the surrounding properties are developed.
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar or

otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that it will
cause a depreciation in property values;

 While a drive-thru lane going through an existing garage structure is unusual, it is compatible with
other downtown designs. During Architectural Review, Planning staff will ensure that the proposed
building façade is attractive.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to serve
the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use. The applicant’s
proposed parking is not required or necessary for this site development.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 The proposed pick-up window will have enough stacking spaces to avoid traffic congestion.
 The possible interruption of traffic flow from the proposed bypass lane will be examined during the

Traffic Impact Analysis.
h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Downtown Redevelopment Plan recommends Planned Mixed Use: Office and Upper Residential uses for the subject
property. This proposed development and the underlying zoning classification are consistent with this recommendation.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow pick-up window in a
CBD-2, Central Business District- Fringe, for the property located at 658 Fourth Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and
subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the pick-up window and drive-thru lane at the subject property, with the
restaurant being established in the existing structure at 648 Fourth Street.

2. Site Plan Review and Architectural Review are required prior to beginning work on this project.
3. The applicant shall maintain a minimum of three (3) stacking spaces for the pick-up window.
4. The applicant must coordinate with Charter concerning their existing infrastructure in the right-of-way of St. Lawrence

Avenue.
5. A Traffic Impact Analysis must be completed, reviewed, and approved by the City Engineer prior to the start of work.
6. The parking area on the west side of the existing building on the subject property is not allowed.
7. “One Way/Do Not Enter” signs must be installed at the St. Lawrence Avenue curb-cut.
8. Traffic Review Committee approval is required for the proposed terrace parking on St. Lawrence Avenue.
9. If approved, the applicant shall grant a sidewalk and public parking easement. The applicant will be responsible for the

cost of these improvements.
10. All improvements shown on the site plan must be completed by November 17, 2015.
11. This Conditional Use Permit does not allow for an outdoor seating area.
12. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission and City

Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor
changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Site Plan, Site Photos, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.





Original Submission: Does not
show terrace parking, bypass lane,

or proposed site parking



Add One
Way/Do Not
Enter Signs

Requires
Traffic
Review
Approval

Parking Area
Recommended for
Denial by Staff

Traffic
Impact
Analysis
Required

Proposed
Pick-Up
Window
Location

Final Submission with Landscaping Details

Requires
Sidewalk
Easement



Current Front View (Fourth Street)

Current Rear View (St. Lawrence Ave)

Garage to be used for
drive-thru

Proposed bypass lane
here

One-way exit for drive-
thru











RESOLUTION
AMENDING THE HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIP (HOME) BUDGET

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has $322,860 in 2010-2014 HOME Investment
Partnership Program (HOME) dollars, and

WHEREAS, the HOME funds are required to be expended in a timely manner and the
funds allocated to the City’s housing rehab loan program are not being spent in a timely manner,
and

WHEREAS, acquisition-rehabilitation is an eligible HOME activity, and

WHEREAS, acquiring and rehabbing houses is consistent with the City’s Consolidated
Plan.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin amends the HOME Budget to allow the $322,860 in 2010-2014 HOME
funds and any new program income to be used for either acquisition-rehabilitation projects or
owner-occupied rehabilitation projects.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, Council President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Reallocation of City HOME funds

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development Authority

Overview/Background Information:

In July 2001, the City of Beloit, Rock County and City of Janesville formed the Rock County HOME Consortium. This
allows us to receive HOME funds directly from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) similar to
CDBG.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. According to HOME Investment Partnership Program guidelines, 19 percent of the HOME funds are allocated to the
City of Beloit. Historically, we have allocated these funds to the City’s Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund

2. The City of Beloit currently has a balance in its 2010 – 2014 HOME Program funds of $322,860. At this point, these
funds are allocated to the City’s Housing Rehab Revolving Loan Fund. We are receiving few applications for these
HOME funds, mostly due to the fact the entire property has to be brought up to code when a HOME loan is awarded
and all mechanicals have to have a useful life of five years. This makes it difficult for many homeowners to afford an
owner-occupied rehab loan.

3. We have committed existing Program Income funds. However, additional Program Income funds are received every
month which must be spent before we spend grant dollars. At this point, we are proposing to allocate these prior
year (2010-2014) grant funds and any new Program Income to be used for either acquisition-rehabilitation projects or
owner-occupied rehab loans. This will give us the flexibility to use these funds on acquisition-rehabilitation projects if
the funds are not being spent on owner-occupied rehabilitation projects.

4. Our proposed acquisition-rehab projects include 422 Bluff/310 Euclid which already has HOME funds allocated to it;
1009 Central Avenue, which was purchased from Rock County during the tax foreclosure process in 2014; and 318
Moore, a house which was purchased by the City in 2012 through the Rock County tax foreclosure process.

5. If we do not use these funds, we will lose them. If we cannot commit these funds to projects in the next few months,
the Rock County Consortium will look for other uses for these funds. We have proposed this alternative to allow
Beloit to use the HOME funds in Beloit.

6. The 2015 HOME Budget, as approved on November 3, 2014, includes approximately $90,000 owner-occupied
rehabilitation loans.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

o Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5 - Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high
quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization and new development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Not applicable



 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – Not
Applicable

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – Not Applicable

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – This proposal would allow us
to retain the HOME funds and rehabilitate viable structures which will then be sold to low-moderate income
homeowners.

Action required/Recommendation:
Consideration of the attached resolution.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The City’s HOME funds are required to be allocated to eligible projects or we risk losing the funds.

Attachments:
Resolution



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
Monday, November 3, 2014

Presiding: Mark Spreitzer
Present: Sheila De Forest, Charles M. Haynes, Regina Hendrix, Ana Kelly, Chuck Kincaid, and

David F. Luebke
Absent: None

1. The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. City Manager Larry Arft presented a resolution designating a portion of Public Avenue from
Pleasant Street to College Street with the honorary name of Marcy Berner-Reedy Avenue.
Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor De Forest seconded. The
motion carried 7-0. Mr. Arft and President Spreitzer presented Ms. Berner-Reedy with a street
sign. Meals on Wheels Board President Jeff Johnson thanked the City Council, Mr. Arft, Assistant
to the City Manager Beth Jacobsen, and Public Works staff for their work and coordination of the
honorary street name and sign. Mr. Arft said that a formal presentation, including a proclamation,
will be at Ms. Berner-Reedy’s retirement party on November 20

th
. File 8659

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented a proposed Ordinance amending
the City of Beloit Zoning District Map to change the zoning district classification of the property
located at 3311 Prairie Avenue from C-1, Office District, to C-3, Community Commercial District.
It was noted that the Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0. Councilor Spreitzer opened
the public hearing:

 Tom Smith, owner of the subject property, said that he is present to answer any
questions the Council may have.

Councilor Spreitzer closed the public hearing. Councilor Luebke made a motion to suspend the
rules and offer a second reading of the ordinance. Councilor De Forest seconded, and the motion
carried 7-0. On the merits, Councilor Kincaid made a motion to enact the ordinance, and
Councilor Haynes seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8661 Ordinance 3545

b. Ms. Christensen presented a proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit Zoning District
Map to change the zoning district classification of the property located at 1901 Gateway
Boulevard from DH, Development Holding District, to M-2, General Manufacturing District. It was
noted that the Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0. Ms. Christensen said that the City
of Beloit owns this property and that the Comprehensive Plan shows Business Park uses as the
property’s future land use. Councilor Spreitzer opened and closed the public hearing without
participation. Councilor Haynes made a motion to suspend the rules and offer a second reading
of the ordinance. Councilor Kelly seconded. Councilor De Forest asked Economic Development
Director Andrew Janke if the residents had any concerns, and Mr. Janke stated that he did not
hear from any residents. The motion carried 7-0. On the merits, Councilor Kincaid made a motion
to enact the ordinance, and Councilor Haynes seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8662
Ordinance 3546

5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION – none

6. CONSENT AGENDA



Councilor Haynes made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda, which consists of items 6.a. through
6.e. Councilor Kelly seconded, and the motion carried that the Consent Agenda be accepted,
approved, adopted, or referred and acted upon as required by state and local codes by a vote of 7-0.

a. The Minutes of the regular meeting of October 20, 2014, were approved.
b. The application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a drive-up window in a CBD-2, Central

Business District – Fringe, zoning district for the property located at 658 Fourth Street, was
referred to the Plan Commission. File 8664

c. The application for a Certified Survey Map for property located at 2600 Coyote Run was referred
to the Plan Commission. File 7258

d. The resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C12-15, Broad Street Parking
Lot was adopted. File 8612

e. The resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C14-05, Crack Sealing and
Sealcoating, was adopted. File 8640

7. ORDINANCES

a. Ms. Christensen presented a proposed ordinance to amend Section 1.82(7)(a) of the Code of
General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to meetings of the Equal Opportunities
Commission. Ms. Christensen stated that the Commission wants to move the time of the
meeting from 5:30 p.m. to 5:45 p.m. so that more working members could arrive on time.
Councilor De Forest made a motion to suspend the rules and offer a second reading of the
ordinance. Councilor Kelly seconded, and the motion carried 7-0. On the merits, Councilor De
Forest made a motion to enact the ordinance, and Councilor Haynes seconded. The motion
carried 6-1, with Councilor Kincaid voting in opposition. File 7465 Ordinance 3547

8. APPOINTMENTS – none

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
 Councilor Luebke said that he went to a program regarding the I-39/90 corridor

enhancements, and he commended Councilor De Forest for her role in bringing construction
training opportunities to Beloit.

 Councilor Kincaid said that he enjoyed Halloween with hundreds of kids in his neighborhood.
He said that he attended an Equality Committee meeting for the Beloit School District and
that he is looking forward to attending more meetings. He said that he attended a celebration
for Tom Warn who wrote a book about Beloit.

 Councilor Hendrix reminded the public about the Kids Against Hunger event on November
15

th
at 8:00 a.m. sponsored by Beloit College Upward Bound program. She also mentioned

the Challenge Event at the Beloit School District, which will focus on self-esteem, expression,
and suppressing violence and bullying.

 Councilor Haynes encouraged the public to vote in the November 4
th

General Election and
beat the projected voter turnout of 50 percent.

 Councilor Spreitzer encouraged the public to vote and thanked the Clerk’s office for their hard
work in preparing for the election. He said that he will not run for City Council again in 2015
and that nomination paperwork is available in the Clerk’s office. He congratulated Elizabeth
Krueger on her promotion to City Attorney.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none

11. REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Ms. Christensen presented a resolution approving the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan, 2015 CDBG Annual Action Plan and 2015 CDBG
Budget. It was noted that the Community Development Authority recommended approval 4-0.
Ms. Christensen said that a local steering committee assisted in developing the five-year
consolidated plan. Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor
Haynes seconded. Councilor De Forest thanked Community and Housing Services Director Teri
Downing for reaching out to the affected organizations. The motion carried 7-0. File 8652



b. Ms. Christensen presented a resolution approving the 2015 HOME Investment Partnership
Budget. It was noted that the Community Development Authority recommended approval 4-0.
Councilor Kincaid made a motion to adopt the resolution. Councilor Kelly seconded, and the
motion carried 7-0. File 8663

c. Downtown Beloit Association Executive Director Shauna El-Amin presented a resolution
approving the 2015 Business Improvement District Operating Plan and Budget. Ms. El-Amin
presented the 2014 projects and those proposed for 2015. She noted that the DBA Board of
Directors recommended approval of the budget. Councilor De Forest made a motion to adopt the
resolution, and Councilor Hendrix seconded. The motion carried 7-0. File 8479

d. Finance and Administrative Services Director Eric Miller presented a resolution authorizing
changes to the 2015 Schedule of Fees, Charges, and Rates for the City of Beloit, Wisconsin.
Mr. Miller noted that the previously proposed increase in transit fares has been removed.
Councilor De Forest expressed concern about the increase in fees for residents for the municipal
pool. Director of Parks and Leisure Services Brian Ramsey said that they are proposing to
change the entire fee structure. Councilor De Forest expressed concern about the increase in
overage fees for garbage collection. Mr. Miller said that the proposed fee is in line with the cost of
a yard waste tag. Councilor Luebke made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Haynes
seconded. Councilor De Forest made a motion to amend the resolution to change the non-
resident fee for the municipal pool for 11-17 year-olds to $4.50. Councilor Kelly seconded. The
motion to amend the resolution carried 7-0. The motion to adopt the amended resolution carried
7-0. File 8649

e. Mr. Miller presented a resolution approving the Operating Budgets, Appropriating Funds, and
Levying Property Taxes necessary for the Operation and Administration of the City of
Beloit for the Year 2015 including the 2015 Capital Improvement Budget, the Beloit Public
Library Budget; and further authorizing the City Treasurer to spread the City Property Tax along
with the apportionments certified for other Jurisdictions upon the current tax roll of the City. Mr.
Miller said that this is the final step in a process that has taken several months. Councilor Haynes
made a motion to adopt the resolution, and Councilor Luebke seconded. Councilor De Forest
thanked the City Manager, Mr. Miller and staff for their work on the budget document, but she
said that she will vote against the budget. She said that the City needs to prioritize the number of
police officers on the street and that she would like to see recruitments take place throughout the
year so vacancies can be filled quickly. The motion to adopt the resolution carried 6-1, with
Councilor De Forest voting in opposition. File 8649

12. At 8:06 p.m., Councilor Hendrix made a motion to adjourn the meeting, and Councilor Kelly
seconded. The motion carried 6-1, with Councilor Haynes voting in opposition.

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
www.ci.beloit.wi.us
Date approved by Council:



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 419 Pleasant Street – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Hendricks Commercial Properties has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Drive-Up Automated Teller
Machine (ATM) in the CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the property located at 419 Pleasant Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant is in the process of building-out a first floor tenant suite for Blackhawk Community Credit Union in the

Vision Center building on the corner of Pleasant Street and Public Avenue.
 The bank’s proposed ATM will be a freestanding ATM in the rear parking lot, as shown on the attached site plan.
 The ATM will be accessed from an existing driveway on Public Avenue. In order to address concerns about the three

required stacking spaces blocking parked vehicles, the applicant has agreed to sign & stripe the five affected parking
stalls as bank employee only stalls.

 As an alternative, the applicant could be required to saw-cut & replace the affected parking stalls with landscaping.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the November 19, 2014 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on December 1, 2014

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Application & Site Plan







CU-2014-09, Drive-Up ATM, 419 Pleasant Street, Council Referral



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A FOUR-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2600 COYOTE RUN

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)(c) of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of
Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Council of the City of
Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City that
involves the dedication of land to the public; and

WHEREAS, the attached four-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2600 Coyote
Run, containing 5 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City of Beloit and includes
the dedication of land to the public; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has heretofore recommended approval of
the attached four-lot Certified Survey Map, along with the dedication of land to the public, which pertains
to the following described land:

Being Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 999142 as Recorded in
Volume 12, Pages 5-8 of Certified Survey Maps as Situated in Part of Lot 3 of Morgan
Farm Subdivision, Being All a Part of the N.W. ¼ of the N.W. ¼ and Part of the N.E. ¼
of the N.W. ¼ of Section 20, T. 1 N., R. 13 E. of the Fourth P.M., Now City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit does
hereby approve the attached four-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2600 Coyote Run,
subject to the following conditions:

1. The final CSM shall label the lots as “out-lots,” along with a note explaining that the lots will not
become buildable until they are re-platted as regular lots and the dedicated street segments are
fully constructed and accepted.

2. Each out-lot cannot be combined with an adjoining residential lot until the agricultural use is
discontinued and the out-lot is converted to lawn. Accessory buildings may only be constructed
following this conversion & combination.

3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2014.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, Council President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 2600 Coyote Run

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 4-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 2600 Coyote Run. According to Section 12.05(1)(c) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the
Plan Commission shall recommend to the City Council approval, conditional approval, or rejection of any minor subdivision of
land within the City that involves the dedication of land to the public.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to subdivide this 5-acre parcel into four lots of various sizes to be purchased by the

owners of adjoining single-family properties in Deerfield Estates and Deerfield Estates First Addition.
 In order to provide future street connections to future residential subdivisions to the northeast of the subject property,

the proposed CSM dedicates a 70-foot wide, 331-foot long segment of Coyote Run to the public. The proposed CSM
also dedicates a 35-foot wide (1/2 right-of-way), 780-foot long segment of Deerfield Drive to the public, connecting the
existing dead-end to Coyote Run. The proposed lots meet the minimum standards in the R-1A zoning district.

 Although the proposed CSM dedicates additional right-of-way, the applicant is not proposing the construction of any
additional infrastructure at this time. The existing street dead-ends will remain until future development occurs.

 The four proposed lots will not be buildable, due to the lack of (actual) street frontage. Therefore, Planning staff and
the Plan Commission recommended a condition of approval that requires the final CSM to label the lots as “out-lots,”
along with a note explaining that the lots will not become buildable until the dedicated streets are constructed.

 The four proposed lots are currently used and assessed as farmland, which would complicate the assessment process
if they were combined with the adjoining residential properties. Therefore, Planning staff and the Plan Commission
recommended a condition of approval stating that all four out-lots cannot be combined with adjoining residential lots
until the agricultural use is discontinued and the out-lots are converted to lawn. Accessory structures (garages, sheds,
etc.) may only be constructed on the out-lots once they’ve been converted to lawn and combined.

 In order to make the proposed lots buildable lots, the City Council would need to require the construction of all required
infrastructure (curb & gutter, asphalt, water, sewer, etc.) as a condition of CSM approval.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on November 5, 2014 and voted unanimously (7-0) to recommend approval
of this CSM, subject to the three conditions recommended by the Planning & Building Services Division.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential development of the subject property. This

proposed land division is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit
Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: November 5, 2014 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2014-12

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: Acorn Development LLC Location: 2600 Coyote Run

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family
Residential District

Existing Land Use: Agricultural Total Area: 5 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 4-Lot Certified Survey
Map (CSM) for the property located at 2600 Coyote Run.

Key Issues:
 The intent of the proposed CSM is to subdivide this 5-acre parcel into four lots of various sizes to be purchased by the

owners of adjoining single-family properties in Deerfield Estates and Deerfield Estates First Addition.
 In order to provide future street connections to future residential subdivisions to the northeast of the subject property,

the proposed CSM dedicates a 70-foot wide, 331-foot long segment of Coyote Run to the public. The proposed CSM
also dedicates a 35-foot wide (1/2 right-of-way), 780-foot long segment of Deerfield Drive to the public, connecting the
existing dead-end to Coyote Run. The proposed lots meet the minimum standards in the R-1A zoning district.

 Although the proposed CSM dedicates additional right-of-way, the applicant is not proposing the construction of any
additional infrastructure at this time. The existing street dead-ends will remain until future development occurs.

 The four proposed lots will not be buildable, due to the lack of (actual) street frontage. Therefore, Planning staff will be
recommending a condition of approval that requires the final CSM to label the lots as “out-lots,” along with a note
explaining that the lots will not become buildable until the dedicated street segments are constructed and accepted.

 The four proposed lots are currently used and assessed as farmland, which would complicate the assessment process
if they were combined with the adjoining residential properties. Therefore, Planning staff is recommending a condition
of approval stating that all four out-lots cannot be combined with adjoining residential lots until the agricultural use is
discontinued and the out-lots are converted to lawn. Accessory structures (garages, sheds, etc.) may only be
constructed on the out-lots once they’ve been converted to lawn and combined with an adjoining single-family lot.

 In order to make the proposed lots buildable lots, the Plan Commission and City Council would need to require the
construction of all required infrastructure (curb & gutter, asphalt, water, sewer, etc.) as a condition of CSM approval.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and agree with the proposed conditions of approval.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential development of the subject property. Consideration of
this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 4-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
property located at 2600 Coyote Run in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. The final CSM shall label the lots as “out-lots,” along with a note explaining that the lots will not become buildable until
they are re-platted as regular lots and the dedicated street segments are fully constructed and accepted.

2. Each out-lot cannot be combined with an adjoining residential lot until the agricultural use is discontinued and the out-
lot is converted to lawn. Accessory buildings may only be constructed following this conversion & combination.

3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2014.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, CSM, and Application.



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report



CSM-2014-12, 2600 Coyote Run, Council Report



RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FINAL PAYMENT OF
PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C13-15

UTE STANDPIPE REPAINTING

WHEREAS, work under this contract has been completed satisfactorily and in
conformance with the requirements of the contract, and

WHEREAS, this project provided a new exterior coat of paint to the city’s watertower
located on Ute Ct; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineer, Comptroller, and Attorney recommend final payment to
the contractor, therefore

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Beloit City Council that L.C.
United Painting Co., Inc. be paid $5,000.00 as final payment for the Public Works Contract
C13-15, Ute Standpipe Repainting Street Resurfacing as recommended by the City Engineer.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 17th day of November 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

__________________________
Mark Spreitzer, President

ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Final Payment for Contract C13-15, Ute Standpipe Repainting

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Gregory Boysen Department(s): Public Works/ Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project placed a new exterior coat of paint on the water tower located on Ute Ct

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The requirements of the contract have been completed to the satisfaction of the City.
2. The awarded contract amount was $ 219,000.00

Quantity increases and change orders $ 0.00
Net payment due contractor $ 5,000.00

3. The City Engineer, City Attorney, and Director of Accounting recommend that a final payment be made to Rock Road
Companies, Inc. in the amount of $5,000.00.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources
to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

 This project will prolong the serviceable life of the water tower, which is a crucial component in providing
potable water to the city’s inhabitants and businesses.

2. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize
personal injury, prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources
 This project will provide several safety features for the people that will maintain and inspect the water tower

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

n/a

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

 This project provided several safety features for people who will need to inspect and service the water tower. It also
protects the steel structure from weathering, which will extend the serviceable life of the water tower.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approval of the Resolution authorizing the Final Payment.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Adequate funding is available in the 2013 Capital Improvement Plan.







RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING FINAL PAYMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT C14-06

Ritsher Sanitary Relay

WHEREAS, work under this contract has been completed satisfactorily and in conformance
with the requirements of the contract; and

WHEREAS, This project replaced failed sewer pipe in the 1000 block of Ritsher Street; and

WHEREAS, the city engineer, comptroller, and attorney recommend final payment to the
contractor.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Beloit City Council that E & N
Hughes Co. be paid $2,368.56 as the final payment for Public Works Contract C14-06 Ritsher Sanitary
Relay as recommended by the City Engineer.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin, this 17th day of November 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

Mark Spreitzer, President
ATTEST:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Final Payment for Contract C14-06, Ritsher Sanitary Relay

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Gregory Boysen Department(s): Public Works/ Engineering

Overview/Background Information:

This project replaced failed sewer pipe in the 1000 block of Ritsher Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. The requirements of the contract have been completed to the satisfaction of the City.
2. The awarded contract amount was $ 84,229.10

Quantity increases and change orders $ 10,513.30
Net payment due contractor $ 94,742.40

3. The City Engineer, City Attorney, and Director of Accounting recommend that a final payment be made to E & N
Hughes Co. in the amount of $2,368.56

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. Develop a high quality community through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources
to further Beloit’s resurgence as a gem of the Rock River Valley.

 This project preserves the quality of life in Beloit by maintaining the functionality of this sanitary sewer main
while reducing its maintenance costs.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

The service period between cleanings is extended.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

n/a

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

n/a

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

The improved sanitary sewer meets the present and future human needs by extending the life of the utility,
and by reducing the frequency of required maintenance.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space.

Action required/Recommendation:

Approval of the Resolution authorizing the Final Payment.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Adequate funding is available in the 2014 Capital Improvement Plan.







Page 1 of 5

ORDINANCE NO. _______________

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND VARIOUS SECTIONS OF 17.06 OF THE CODE OF
GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELOIT PERTAINING TO THE
REGULATION OF SOLID WASTE.

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Section 17.06(2) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to include, in alphabetical order, the following additions and deletions to chapter
definitions:

Bulky Materials. A solid waste items which is are too large to fit into a proper solid waste container and
exceeds 25 pounds. "Bulky materials" includes, but isare not limited to, glass mirrors, china hutches and
buffets, counter-tops, cabinets, pool tables, game tables, work benches, couches, hide-a-beds, love
seats, chairs, dressers, chests of drawers, toilets, cribs, doors, window frames, door frames, pianos,
organs, liquor cabinets, desks, pinball machines, mattresses, box springs, entertainment centers, dog
houses, wood fencing, lawn mowers (provided the gas tank and battery are removed), exercise
equipment and windows.

Early Collection Fee. A fee charged for the collection of sSolid waste that is placed curbside or streetside
for collection before noon of the day preceding the day of collection or. An "early collection fee" is also
a fee charged for collection of solid waste that is not maintained in an orderly fashion when placed at
curbside or streetside for collection in violation of subsection (14)(g) of this section. The "early collection
fee" is in addition to any other applicable solid waste fee.

High Volume Fee. A fee charged by the City for collection of Rresidential solid waste consisting of six (6)
or more individual items of solid waste and/or solid waste containers which are placed for collection.

Other Paper. Magazines, paperback books, phone books, catalogs, junk mail, greeting cards and gift
wrap.

Recyclables (Recyclable Material). Solid waste meeting preparation standards and for which there is a
market and/or short-term storage facility available. It includes antifreeze, newspaper, other paper,
boxboard, cardboard, glass container, metal can, plastic container, tire, waste oil, lead-acid battery,
major appliance, electronic waste, and such other item as the City may, from time to time, designate as
recyclable.

Solid Waste. Unwanted or discarded material in a solid or semisolid state, including, but not limited to,
recyclable material, garbage, ashes, refuse, rubbish, yard wastes, white goodsappliances and bulky
materialshome furniture and furnishings.

Yard Waste. Compostable materials, and brush and shrubbery.



Page 2 of 5

Section 2. Section 17.06(5) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(5) MANDATORY SEPARATION AND COLLECTION OF RECYCLABLES.
(a) The City Council finds that it is appropriate to participate in an integrated waste

reduction and mandatory recycling program in order to conserve available local
landfill capacity. The City Council further finds that it is appropriate to participate in
both local and statewide recycling programs in order to conserve energy, recycle
valuable resources and protect the public health, welfare and the environment.

(b) Effective January 1, 1995, aAll persons who generate solid waste within the
corporate limits of the City shall be required to separate recyclable material from
all other solid waste.

(c) Effective January 1, 1995, oOwners of multi-family dwellings and nonresidential
property shall be required to provide for the collection and proper disposal of solid
waste and recyclable material.

(d) Effective January 3, 1994, oOccupants of single family dwellings shall be required to
use the collection and disposal services provided by the City and shall be required
to prepare and place solid waste and recyclable materials for collection as required
by this section.”

Section 3. Section 17.06(7)(a) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(a) Except as provided below, the owner of premises containing a multi-family dwelling or
an institutional, commercial, business, industrial or agricultural establishment producing
solid waste within the City shall provide sufficient and adequate containers for the
storage of all solid waste produced on the premises, except bulky materials, white
goodsappliances, and brushwoody vegetation, and shall maintain such solid waste
containers in good repair at all times. In single-family dwellings, the occupants of each
dwelling unit shall be responsible for compliance with this paragraph. Each solid waste
container, including containers for recyclables, shall bear the name of the container's
owner and/or address, including apartment number or letter, if applicable.”

Section 4. Section 17.06(7)(b) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(b) The occupants of every dwelling unit and every institutional, commercial, business,
industrial or agricultural establishment shall place all solid waste in proper solid waste
containers, except bulky materials, white goodsappliances and brushyard waste, and
shall maintain such solid waste containers and the area surrounding them in a clean,
neat and sanitary condition at all times.”

Section 5. Section 17.06(7)(c) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:



Page 3 of 5

“(c) Solid waste, except bulky materials, white goodsappliances and brushyard waste, which
is placed at curbside or streetside for regular municipal removal shall be stored in
containers that have a capacity of not more than 39 gallons and that weigh not more
than 60 pounds (container and contents combined). Nondisposable containers shall
have at least one handle and a detachable lid. Disposable and nondisposable containers
which leak, fall apart or spill contents when handled shall be removed and disposed of
by the hauler.”

Section 6. Section 17.06(9)(i) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(i) White goods, bulky materials, solid waste items subject to a high volume collection fee
and yard waste may be placed at curbside or streetside for collection. In the alternative,
the owner of recyclable solid waste materials may bring the recyclable solid waste to
the recycling drop-off center. If solid waste materials are placed at curbside or
streetside before noon of the day preceding the day of collection, the City may dispatch
a truck for collection. The owner of the dwelling unit shall be billed an early collection
fee in addition to any other applicable solid waste fee. The high volume fee, the early
collection fee and the fees for removal of bulky materials, white goods and yard waste
shall be determined by City Council resolution. If the owner of the premises defaults in
payment of any solid waste fee, the fee shall be imposed as a special charge against the
real property pursuant to §66.0627, Wis. Stats. If the special charge is not paid within
the time specified in the notice to the landowner, the delinquent special charge shall be
included in the current or next tax roll for collection and settlement under Ch. 74, Wis.
Stats.”

Section 7. Section 17.06(24)(b) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby amended to read as follows:

“(b) Persons and Property Subject to Solid Waste Collection Charge. The owner of every
dwelling unit and the owner of every nonresidential tax parcel receiving curbside solid
waste collection services from the City of Beloit, its employees, agents or contractors,
shall be required to pay the solid waste fee established by this subsection. The curbside
solid waste collection fee shall be paid by owners of tax-exempt properties as well as
owners of taxable properties. If the sewer bill is in an occupant's name, the bill for solid
waste collection services shall also be put in the occupant's name. However, the owner
of the property shall be responsible for payment of the bill for each dwelling unit for
solid waste collection services if the occupant fails to pay the same. The solid waste
collection fee does not include the high volume fees or the fee for early collection, the
collection of high volume items, bulky materials, white goods and yard waste.”



Page 4 of 5

Section 8. Section 17.06(28) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit is
hereby created to read as follows:

“(28) FEES. Fees for collection of solid waste shall be established by City Council resolution.
The imposition of one fee may not preclude the imposition of any other applicable solid
waste fee. If the owner of the property defaults on payment of any solid waste fee, the
fee shall be imposed as a special charge against real property pursuant to §66.0627,
Wis. Stats. If the special charge is not paid within the time specified in the notice to the
property owner, the delinquent special charge shall be entered on the tax roll for
collection and settlement under Chapter 74, Wis. Stats.

(a) Early Collection Fee. The City shall charge a fee for the collection of solid waste
that is placed curbside or streetside for collection before noon of the day
preceding the day of collection. If solid waste materials are placed at curbside
or streetside before noon of the day preceding the day of collection, the City
may dispatch a truck for collection. The owner of the dwelling unit shall be
billed an early collection fee in addition to any other applicable solid waste fee.
The City shall also charge a fee for the collection of solid waste that is not
maintained in an orderly fashion when placed at curbside or streetside for
collection in violation of subsection (14)(g) of this section.

(b) High Volume Fee. The City shall charge a fee for the collection residential solid
waste consisting of 6 or more individual items of solid waste and/or solid waste
containers which are placed for collection.

(c) Bulky Material Fee. The City shall charge a fee for the collection of a residential
solid waste item which is too large to fit into a proper solid waste container and
exceeds 25 pounds.

(d) Yard Waste Fee. The City shall charge a fee for the collection of yard waste. A
prepaid tag must be affixed on the item for collection, except during those times
when the City designates that yard waste may be placed curbside or streetside
without such tag affixed.

(e) White Goods Fee. The City shall charge a fee for the collection of white goods.”



Page 5 of 5

Section 9. This ordinance shall be in force and take effect upon passage and publication.

Adopted this ______ day of November, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

By:
Mark Spreitzer, President

ATTEST:

By:
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

PUBLISHED:
EFFECTIVE DATE:
01-611100-5231-

tdh/ordinances/17.06 = ORD 141024 (14-1204) 1700



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Ordinance to amend various sections of 17.06 of the Code of General Ordinances pertaining to Solid Waste.

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Gregory Boysen, Public Works Director Department(s): Public Works/Operations

Overview/Background Information:
The Department of Public Works has undergone a review of section 17.06 of the Municipal Code relating to Solid Waste
Management. Staff is requesting minor text amendments to various sections of the Solid Waste Collection ordinance.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. The proposed ordinance contains updated language to provide greater clarification to chapter definitions and

concepts.
2. The proposed ordinance organizes all the various fees in one section of the ordinance.
3. The fees will be set by council resolution.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):
Adoption of the amended ordinance would conform to the stated purpose of goal #1 in furthering the responsible
stewardship and enhancement of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently

Action required/Recommendation:
The ordinance has been reviewed by city staff and is recommended for approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

20141024 1701



November 17, 2014

APPOINTMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL

APPOINTMENT RECOMMENDATION

The undersigned Mark Spreitzer, duly elected President of the Beloit City Council, subject to
confirmation by the Beloit City Council, does hereby appoint the following citizen members to the
vacancies and terms indicated below, said appointments being pursuant to nominations made and
approved by the Appointment Review Committee at the regular meeting held November 10, 2014:

Mark Spreitzer, President
Beloit City Council

Appointments

Community Development Authority
Erin Moffitt, 1648 Prairie Ave. (replacing Nailah Adama) for a term ending December 31,

2016

Landmarks Commission
Incumbent Ellen E. Joyce for a term ending October 31, 2017
Stephen Truesdale, 726 Milwaukee Road (replacing Rick McGrath) for a term ending

October 31, 2017

Municipal Golf Committee
Edwin Armstrong, 2945 S. Paddock Rd. (replacing Greg Madison) as the Men’s Club

Representative (Ex Officio member)

PLEASE ANNOUNCE THE FOLLOWING VACANCIES

Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee (1 vacancy for resident)
Appointment Review Committee (1 vacancy for resident)
Board of Appeals (1 vacancy [Alternate] for resident)
Board of Ethics (1 vacancy for former City Councilor, 3 vacancies for residents)
Board of Review (1 vacancy for resident; 2 vacancies [Alternate] for residents)
Business Improvement District (Downtown Beloit Association) (2 vacancies for Owner

Occupant; 1 vacancy for Property Owner; 1 vacancy for Non-owner Occupant)
Community Development Authority (1 vacancy for Public Housing resident)
Equal Opportunities Commission (2 vacancies for residents)
Municipal Golf Committee (1 vacancy for resident)
Park, Recreation & Conservation Advisory Commission (1 vacancy for resident; 1 vacancy for

Youth Representative)
Police and Fire Commission (1 vacancy – supplemental application required)
Traffic Review Committee (3 vacancies for residents)



QB\31140926.1

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION'S

MUNICIPALITIES CONTINUING DISCLOSURE COOPERATION INITIATIVE

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit (the “City"), as an issuer of municipal securities, is
required by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) to prepare Official
Statements for offerings of municipal securities; and

WHEREAS, federal regulations requires underwriters to comply with certain
requirements in connection with their purchase and sale of municipal securities in an offering,
including that an underwriter must obtain and review a preliminary Official Statement and must
determine that the municipal issuer has undertaken to provide, on a continuing basis while the
securities are outstanding and in a written agreement ("Continuing Disclosure Agreement"),
financial information including the issuer's audited financial statements, certain operating data,
and notices of the occurrence of certain events; and

WHEREAS, federal regulations further require that Official Statements for offerings of
municipal securities contain descriptions of any instances in the previous five years (from the
date of the Official Statement) in which the issuer failed to comply, in all material respects, with
any of its previous Continuing Disclosure Agreements; and

WHEREAS, the Division of Enforcement of the SEC (the "Division") has recently
announced its Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative (the "MCDC
Initiative") which is intended to address potential inaccuracies in descriptions of non-compliance
by municipal issuers with their Continuing Disclosure Agreements; and

WHEREAS, in its announcement describing the MCDC Initiative, the Division states that
issuers should consider self-reporting any known “material" misstatements to the Division to
take advantage of standardized settlement terms under the MCDC Initiative, a copy of which is
attached hereto and marked as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the City is currently aware of four late filings of the City’s financial reports
related to Continuing Disclosure Agreements for the years 2005, 2010, 2011 and 2012; and

WHEREAS, the SEC has failed to provide municipalities with any guidance on whether
not describing the late filing of such reports in an Official Statement would be considered a
“material” misstatement under the law; and

WHEREAS, if the City elects to participate in the MCDC Initiative and the Division
determines that not describing such late filings of financial reports related to Continuing
Disclosure Agreements are “material” misstatements or if there are discovered other inaccuracies
that would warrant enforcement, the standardized settlement terms will be substantially more
favorable to the City than if the City chooses not participate; and

WHEREAS, out of an abundance of caution and in consultation with the City’s financial
and legal advisors, City staff has recommended to the City Council that the most prudent course
of action is to participate in the MCDC Initiative, despite staff’s belief that not describing the late
filing of financial reports related to Continuing Disclosure Agreements is not a “material”
misstatement under the law.



-2-
QB\31140926.1

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit that
the City Manager and/or the Finance and Administrative Services Director are hereby authorized
to take whatever action is deemed necessary for the City to participate in the MCDC Initiative.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no participation under the MCDC Initiative shall be required if
there occurs a change of law, a change to the MCDC Initiative, or a change regarding relevant
facts and circumstances which the Finance and Administrative Services Director determines, on
behalf of the City and with the advice of Counsel, would make such reporting unnecessary.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City hereby adopts the attached Continuing
Disclosure Compliance Policy (the "Policy") and the Procedures Regarding Continuing
Disclosure Compliance ("Procedures") incorporated therein, which are attached hereto and
marked as Exhibit B. Any prior policy or procedure relating to the City's continuing disclosure
compliance that conflicts with the attached Policy and Procedures is hereby rescinded and
replaced with such Policy and Procedures. The City's Finance and Administrative Services
Director shall serve as the initial Compliance Officer for purposes of administering and carrying
out the Procedures.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City hereby authorizes the officers and agents of
the City to enter into, on its behalf, agreements for professional services in conjunction with the
City's participation in the MCDC Initiative, including but not limited to an agreement for legal
services with Quarles & Brady LLP ("Counsel"). Any such agreement heretofore entered into is
hereby ratified and approved in all respects.

Adopted, approved and recorded this 17th day of November, 2014.

______________________________________
Mark Spreitzer
Council President

ATTEST:

____________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire
City Clerk

tdh/files/14-1234/MCDC Initiative =res= 20141111



QB\31140926.1

EXHIBIT A

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

MUNICIPALITIES CONTINUING DISCLOSURE COOPERATION INITIATIVE

ANNOUNCEMENT

(See Attached)



QB\31140926.1

EXHIBIT B

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE COMPLIANCE POLICY

AND

PROCEDURES REGARDING CONTINUING DISCLOSURE COMPLIANCE

(See Attached)



Revised 01-10-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolutions Authorizing City’s Participation in the MCDC Initiative.

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Eric R. Miller, Finance & Administrative Services Director Department: Finance

Overview/Background Information: The Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperative Initiative (MCDC Initiative) is an
initiative recently announced by the Division of Enforcement of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. The MCDC
Initiative is meant to address potential noncompliance by municipal issuers and underwriters regarding their continuing
disclosure agreements and allows them to self-report any known “material” misstatements to take advantage of standard
settlement terms. Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires issuers to provide financial information
including audited financial statements, certain operating data, and notices of occurrence of certain events as part of their
continuing disclosure agreements. The City is aware of four late filings of the City’s financial reports for the years 2005, 2010,
2011, and 2012. The SEC has failed to provide any guidance on whether the late filings of such reports are considered to be
a “material” misstatement under the MCDC Initiative. Out of abundance of caution and after consulting with the City’s
financial and legal advisors, Ehlers and Quarles & Brady respectively, it is desirable and in the best interest of the City to
participate in the MCDC Initiative, despite belief that the late filings are not “material” misstatements under the law.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. Municipal issuers are required to file financial information annually as part of their continuing disclosure agreements.
2. The City of Beloit has filed accurate financial reports every year, however, the 2005, 2010, 2011, and 2012 financial

reports were not filed on time.
3. The MCDC Initiative was introduced to address potential noncompliance by municipal issuers who failed to disclose

“material” misstatements in their Official Statements.
4. The SEC has not provided any guidance as to what is considered “material” under the law and will only make that

determination after evaluating the report once it’s submitted.
5. City staff, as well as their financial and legal advisors, does not believe that the late filings constitute a “material”

misstatement, yet out of abundance of caution, staff recommends participation in the MCDC Initiative.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long-term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends adoption of the resolution authorizing participation in the MCDC Initiative.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The cost for bond counsel to review all Official Statements, help prepare appropriate resolutions, assist in completion of the
MCDC Questionnaire, prepare cover letter and report, and provide both the continuing disclosure policy and procedure is
$11,000 which will spread out among several different funds.



1

RESOLUTION DECLARING OFFICIAL INTENT
TO REIMBURSE EXPENDITURES

FROM PROCEEDS OF BORROWING

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin plans to undertake capital
projects hereinafter (the "Projects") approved by the City Council in the 2015 Capital
Improvements Budget, as follows:

Project Title GO Debt

TERRACE TREE PLANTING $100,000
SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS 20,000
STREET MAINTENANCE 1,300,000
INMAN PKWY EXTENSION: PRAIRIE AVE - SHOPIERE RD 426,500
BAYLISS AVE. REHAB: GLEN - PARK 130,800
EAST SIDE NEIGHBORHOOD INITIATIVE STREETS 33,000
BIG HILL CENTER ACQUISITION 125,000
BIG HILL PARK PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE-BIKE TRAIL 98,160
PARK FACILITIES & AMENITIES ENHANCEMENT 160,000
RECREATION FACILITY ENHANCEMENTS 52,100
PARKS PARKING LOTS 35,000
LEESON BRIDGE STABILIZATION 20,000
SALT SHED ROOF REPLACEMENT 27,783
SELF CONTAINED BREATHING APPARATUS 200,000
THERMAL IMAGING CAMERAS 36,000
PATROL RIFLES & ACCESSORIES REPLACEMENT 35,000
AMBULANCE REPLACEMENT #6209 130,000
SPECIALTY VEHICLE REPLACEMENT (EVIDENCE UNIT) 50,000
EMULSION STORAGE TANK 50,000
NEW VOTING EQUIPMENT 72,400
PROPERTY ACQUISITION & DEMOLITION 200,000
KRUEGER GOLF COURSE 30,000
CEMETERY REPAIRS 10,000

Total $3,341,743

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit expects to finance the Projects on a long-term basis by
issuing tax-exempt bonds or other tax-exempt obligations (collectively, the "Bonds"); and

WHEREAS, because the Bonds may not be issued prior to commencement of the
Projects, the Issuer must provide interim financing to cover costs of the Projects incurred prior to
receipt of the proceeds of the Bonds; and



2

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it to be necessary, desirable, and in the best
interests of the City to advance moneys from its funds on hand on an interim basis to pay the
costs of the Projects until the Bonds are issued.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Beloit,
Wisconsin that;

Section 1. Expenditure of Funds. The City of Beloit shall make expenditures as needed
from its funds on hand to pay the cost of the Projects until proceeds of the Bonds become
available.

Section 2. Declaration of Official Intent. The City of Beloit hereby officially declares
its intent under Treas. Reg. Section 1.150-2 to reimburse said expenditures with proceeds of the
Bonds, the principal amount of which is not expected to exceed $3,750,000 including estimated
cost of issuance.

Section 3. Unavailability of Long-Term Funds. No funds for payment of the Projects
from sources other than the Bonds are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a
long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by the City pursuant to its budget or financial policies.

Section 4. Public Availability of Official Intent Resolution. The Resolution shall be
made available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk within 30 days after its
approval in compliance with the applicable state law governing the availability of records of
official acts including Subchapter II of Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes, and shall remain
available for public inspection until the Bonds are issued.

Section 5. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective upon its adoption and
approval.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 17th day of November, 2014.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

________________________________
Mark Spreitzer, President

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk



Revised 01-10-081

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution Declaring Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from Bond Proceeds

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Eric R. Miller, Finance and Administrative Services Director

Department(s): Finance

Overview/Background Information: Each year as part of the city’s budget and capital project planning process, staff
evaluates scheduled capital improvement projects included in the Capital Budget and CIP to determine those that are eligible
and require debt financing as a funding source for project completion. For those projects included in the adopted 2015 Capital
Budget, the plan was to issue approximately $3.4 million in General Obligation debt. A list of the capital projects scheduled for
2015 bond financing is included in the Declaration of Intent Resolution. U. S. Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2 requires
the city to declare its official intent to reimburse any advanced payments of project expenditures from the bond proceeds. The
Council must make this declaration by resolution.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. As part of the approved 2015 Capital Budget and CIP, debt financing is required to fund scheduled capital

improvement projects.
2. To reimburse project expenditures incurred prior to completion of the bond financing requires a formal declaration of

intent to reimburse as required by U. S. Treas. Regs. 1.150-2.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):

The 2014 bond financings will satisfy four of the five key goals contained in the city’s Strategic Plan.

1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect
both our built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

2. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal
injury, prevent loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

3. Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

4. Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high quality community through historic preservation, community
revitalization and new development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long-term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends Council adoption of the Resolution in order to comply with U.S. Treasury Regulations related to the
issuance of tax exempt debt.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. This resolution does not obligate the city to issue debt or proceed with
the sale of any debt instruments.



RESOLUTION APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO AN
EQUIPMENT LOCATION LEASE WITH NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC

FOR SPACE ON WATER TOWER SITE AT 138 MILL STREET

WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (hereinafter “Lessee”) has an Equipment
Location Lease for space on the Mill Street Water Tower; and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has approached the City requesting to upgrade current
equipment and install additional equipment on the Tower; and

WHEREAS, the City staff has reviewed the site plans and the site plans are acceptable;
and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has agreed to pay the City an additional $300 per month for the
additional space requested; and

WHEREAS, during negotiations it was learned that the Lessee has mistakenly overpaid
rent from 2007 to present and the Lessee has agreed to resolve the issue of the overpayment of
rent by accepting a monthly rent credit over the duration of the lease; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, finds that the proposed lease amendment is in the best interest of the
City of Beloit and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the attached Second
Amendment to the Equipment Location Lease and to do such other and further things necessary
to fully implement the lease agreement.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
tdh\resolution\Second Amendment Mill Street=res=141108 (03-1237)



20141109 Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease – New Cingular (Mill Street Tower)

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Elizabeth A. Krueger Department(s): City Attorney

Overview/Background Information:
In 2002, Wisconsin Power and Light and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC entered into a lease for space on the Mill Street Water
Tower. The City assumed Wisconsin Power and Lights’ interest in the lease in 2003. In 2005, the City and New Cingular entered
into a First Amendment to Equipment Location Lease that modified the terms of the original lease, including a modification to the
rent payment in exchange for extending the terms of the 2002 lease.

New Cingular recently approached the City of Beloit requesting to add additional equipment to the water tower in exchange for an
increase in rent of $300 per month. Staff has reviewed the site plans and staff has determined that the plans and proposed rent
are acceptable and recommended for approval.

During negotiations it was discovered that New Cingular had been overpaying rent since the beginning of the first renewal period.
New Cingular has agreed to a rent credit for the overpayment over the duration of the lease. The increased rent and the credit for
the overpayment of rent have been outlined in the terms of the Second Amendment.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. New Cingular has a current lease for the location of cellular equipment on the Mill Street Water Tower.
2. New Cingular wishes to upgrade its equipment and add additional equipment.
3. New Cingular has agreed to an increase of rent of $300/month.
4. New Cingular has overpaid rent for a number of years and has accepted a rent credit over the duration of the lease to

resolve the issue of the overpayment.
5. The new rent schedule shall be $1,940/month for the 2

nd
Renewal Period, $2,409/month for the 3

rd
Renewal Period,

and $2,995/month for the 4
th

Renewal Period.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):
Approval of this lease amendment would conform with Goal #1’s stated purpose of developing a high quality community
through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommendation to Council to approve resolution authorizing City Manager to enter the Second Amendment to Equipment
Location Lease.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Additional $300/month rent for the duration of the Lease Agreement.

Attachments: Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease



































RESOLUTION APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO AN
EQUIPMENT LOCATION LEASE WITH NEW CINGULAR WIRELESS PCS, LLC

FOR SPACE ON WATER TOWER SITE AT 2995 CRANSTON ROAD

WHEREAS, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC (hereinafter “Lessee”) has an Equipment
Location Lease for space on the Cranston Road Water Tower; and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has approached the City requesting to upgrade current
equipment and install additional equipment on the Tower; and

WHEREAS, the City staff has reviewed the site plans and the site plans are acceptable;
and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has agreed to pay the City an additional $300 per month for the
additional space requested; and

WHEREAS, during negotiations it was learned that the Lessee has mistakenly overpaid
rent from 2006 to present and the Lessee has agreed to resolve the issue of the overpayment of
rent by accepting a monthly rent credit over the duration of the lease; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin, finds that the proposed lease amendment is in the best interest of the
City of Beloit and the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the attached Second
Amendment to the Equipment Location Lease and to do such other and further things necessary
to fully implement the lease agreement.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk
tdh\resolution\Second Amendment Cranston Road =res=141108 (03-1238)



20141109 Form Revised 07-01-08

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease – New Cingular (Cranston Road Tower)

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Elizabeth A. Krueger Department(s): City Attorney

Overview/Background Information:
In 2002, Wisconsin Power and Light and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC entered into a lease for space on the Cranston Road
Water Tower. The City assumed Wisconsin Power and Lights’ interest in the lease in 2003. In 2005, the City and New Cingular
entered into a First Amendment to Equipment Location Lease that modified the terms of the original lease, including a modification
to the rent payment in exchange for extending the terms of the 2002 lease.

New Cingular recently approached the City of Beloit requesting to add additional equipment to the water tower in exchange for an
increase in rent of $300 per month. Staff has reviewed the site plans and staff has determined that the plans and proposed rent
are acceptable and recommended for approval.

During negotiations it was discovered that New Cingular had been overpaying rent since the beginning of the first renewal period.
New Cingular has agreed to a rent credit for the overpayment over the duration of the lease. The increased rent and the credit for
the overpayment of rent have been outlined in the terms of the Second Amendment.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. New Cingular has a current lease for the location of cellular equipment on the Cranston Road Water Tower.
2. New Cingular wishes to upgrade its equipment and add additional equipment.
3. New Cingular has agreed to an increase of rent of $300/month.
4. New Cingular has overpaid rent for a number of years and has accepted a rent credit over the duration of the lease to

resolve the issue of the overpayment.
5. The new rent schedule shall be $2,400/month for the 2

nd
Renewal Period, $3,025/month for the 3

rd
Renewal Period,

and $3,805/month for the 4
th

Renewal Period.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.):
Approval of this lease amendment would conform with Goal #1’s stated purpose of developing a high quality community
through the responsible stewardship and enhancement of City resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that
space.

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommendation to Council to approve resolution authorizing City Manager to enter the Second Amendment to Equipment
Location Lease.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Additional $300/month rent for the duration of the Lease Agreement.

Attachments: Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease







































RESOLUTION ADOPTING A COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELOIT AND THE WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL POLICE

ASSOCIATION/LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEE RELATIONS DIVISION
(WPPA/LEER)

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit has had Collective Bargaining Agreements in place with
WPPA/LEER that outlined various terms and conditions of employment; and

WHEREAS, the current Agreement expired on December 31, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the city and bargaining representatives from the Local have concluded
negotiations on a new four-year Collective Bargaining Agreement, which will take effect on
January 1, 2014 and conclude on December 31, 2017;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Beloit City Council that the City
Manager be, and he hereby is, authorized to enter into a Collective Bargaining Agreement with
WPPA/LEER for the calendar years 2014 through 2017; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms and conditions
of the new four-year agreement shall be as outlined in the attached “Tentative Agreement”
summarizing the terms of agreement.

Adopted this 17th day of November, 2014.

City Council of the City of Beloit

Mark Spreitzer, President

Attest:

Rebecca Houseman LeMire, City Clerk

att



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: WPPA/LEER Police Union Agreement for 2014-2017

Date: November 17, 2014

Presenter(s): Joe Simpson Department: Human Resources

Overview/Background Information:
The Agreement between the City of Beloit and the Wisconsin Professional Police Association/Law Enforcement Employee
Relations Division Union (WPPA/LEER) expired on 12/31/13. The City and the Union have reached a tentative agreement
that has been ratified by the Union members on 10/15/14. The matter is now before the Council for approval.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Wages are increased by 2% for 2014, 0% for 2015, 1% for 2016 and 2017. These are slightly below average
increases of comparable Wisconsin cities due to the economic state of the City.

2. Medical Insurance for those hired before 1/1/95 is unchanged. For those hired after 1/1/95; substantial changes in
language to clarify vagueness of current contract language. Those retirees who are eligible for other group health
insurance shall be required to enroll in that other group plan. The City will reimburse all costs to the retiree for the
“other” group health insurance up to $12,700 family / $6,350 single, which follows the current ACA (Affordable Care
Act) maximum out-of-pocket amounts set for CY 2014. The City will continue to use the ACA as the benchmark for
reimbursement but has set a cap not to exceed $20,000 family / $10,000 single. A Health Reimbursement Account
(HRA) will be established and funded via the Health Fund.

3. Post 1/1/95 retirees will be allowed to remain on the COB health plan if no other group coverage available, until
Medicare eligible age.

4. Annual VEBA (Voluntary Employee’s Beneficiary Association) contributions will be $675 in 2014 and 2015; $750 in
2016; $825 in 2017.

5. The gratuity pay increased from 4 to 6 weeks for employees retiring that were hired after 1/1/95. Increased
additional gratuity pay from 2 to 4 weeks if a post 1/1/95 retiree has 120 days of sick leave balance at the time of
retirement.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s
mission.): Goal 3. Continued promotion of a safe and healthy community.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will
impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels –
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature –
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems –
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently –

Action required/Recommendation:

Adopt the proposed resolution for the WPPA/LEER Police Union Agreement (2014 – 2017)

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Wages have been budgeted appropriately for 2014 and will be for 2015 and throughout the terms of the Agreement.

Attachment:



Page 1 of 7

CITY OF BELOIT
TO

WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION
LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEE RELATIONS DIVISION

The City reserves the right to add, modify or withdraw any and all proposals.

ARTICLE XII-MEDICAL INSURANCE

12.02 For employees hired before January 1, 1995

Employees hired before January 1, 1995 retiring under honorable

conditions or duty incurred injury or disease, from active employment and

receiving an annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund as Beloit Police

Officers and their dependents (including widow/er and dependent children)

shall be retained by the City as members of the eligible medical, hospital,

and dental insurance group, under the plan document in effect at the time

of retirement and the City shall pay the full premium cost.

For employees hired after January 1, 1995

For employees hired on or after January 1, 1995, retiring under honorable

conditions or duty incurred injury or disease, from active employment and

receiving an annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund as Beloit Police

Officers and their dependents (including widow/er and dependent children)

shall be eligible to remain in the group health and dental plan, however,

eligibility shall cease when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare or

another group health insurance plan (other than the City of Beloit), then the

retiree and their dependents are required to enroll in that other group plan.

The City agrees to reimburse on a monthly basis the premium cost, in

addition to deductibles, copays, and coinsurance expenses, paid for that

period, subject to the maximum contributions set forth herein. The

maximum annual City reimbursement for premium, deductibles, copays,



Page 2 of 7

and coinsurance will be based upon PHS Act Section 1302(c)(1), per the

Affordable Care Act, which is $6,350 single/$12,700 family annually for

calendar year 2014. For future years, the City agrees to reimburse on a

monthly basis the premium cost, in addition to deductibles, copays, and

coinsurance expenses, paid for that period up to the applicable single

and/or family maximums set by the Affordable Care Act for that calendar

year; however, annual reimbursements, during any year of retirement, shall

not exceed $10,000 single/$20,000 family.

The retiree will be reimbursed payment of premiums and any deductibles,

coinsurance and copayments from a Retiree Health Reimbursement

Account (HRA) established by the City. The HRA accounts will be set up to

reimburse retirees on a monthly basis after a request for reimbursement of

the appropriate amount is made by the Retiree with the appropriate

documentation. Appropriate documentation for reimbursement can include

an Explanation Of Benefits (EOB) with regard to the deductible,

coinsurance and copayment and/or a pay statement reflecting the premium

contribution amount.

The retiree and any dependents receiving reimbursements under this

program shall not participate in City’s Group Health Plan and shall not be

eligible to re-enroll or participate in the City’s Group Health Plan. In the

event the other group insurance is no longer available and the retiree

acquires health insurance elsewhere, the retiree and dependent

spouse/domestic partner shall continue to be reimbursed under the Health

Reimbursement Account (HRA). Upon eligibility for Medicare of retiree, all

reimbursements under the Retiree Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)

will end.



Page 3 of 7

Upon retirement, in the event a retiree is not eligible for coverage with

another group health insurance plan, then the retiree and eligible

dependents may remain in the City’s group health and dental plan.

Retirees shall be subject to any modifications of benefits, plan design, or

carrier that the City may implement in the future and apply uniformly to the

active employee’s insurance plan. At the age of Medicare eligibility,

retirees and their dependents that remain eligible for health care

continuation, shall enroll in Medicare and will be responsible to pay the

entire Medicare premium.

The City may, at its sole discretion, offer a supplemental or a fully insured

policy to retirees after they reach Medicare eligibility. If such a program is

offered, retirees may participate in any plan offered by the City with the

retiree paying the full cost of the plan. The City reserves the right to stop

offering a Medicare supplement plan at any time for any reason. (TA

8/8/14)

12.07 VEBA

The City agrees to establish a Voluntary Employee's Beneficiary

Association (VEBA) in accordance with applicable sections of the

Internal Revenue Service Code at no cost to the City., except in

2005, the City will contribute $510 per year to a VEBA account for

each employee. Beginning January 1, 2006, the City’s contribution

will be $560 per year and beginning January 1, 2007, the City’s

contribution will be $610 per year. Beginning January 1, 2008 the

City’s contribution will be $675 per year. Details of the VEBA are set

forth in Section 12.08 of this Agreement.



Page 4 of 7

12.08 VEBA (Post-Employment Health Plan)

The City of Beloit (“Employer”) agrees to participate in the Post-

Employment Health Plan for Collectively Bargained Public Employees

(“Plan”) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Plan’s

participation agreement, a copy of which is provided along with this

agreement. The parties may jointly agree to change the administrator

and/or trustee for the Plan during the term of the collective bargaining

agreement.

The Employer agrees to contribute to the Plan on behalf of the following

category of employees: All police officers and detectives employed by the

City of Beloit, excluding supervisory, managerial, and confidential

employees.

For the term of this agreement, the Employer shall contribute for each

eligible employee the amount of $675 in 2014 and 2015; $750 in 2016;

$825 in 2017. (TA 8/8/14)

ARTICLE XV - WORKERS’ COMPENSATION - SICK LEAVE

15.02 In the event of the death of any officer who has completed the probationary

period and, at the time of the officer's death, is serving as an active

employee of the Police Department, regardless of the number of years of

service, the City shall pay into the officer’s VEBA account an amount



Page 5 of 7

equivalent to such officer's wages for fifty (50) percent of the officer's

accumulated sick leave (TA 8/8/14)

15.04 Employees hired on or after January 1, 1995, retiring from active duty, and

receiving annuities from the Wisconsin Retirement Fund, shall receive a

maximum of four (4) six (6) weeks gratuity pay, from their sick leave bank,

paid into the employee’s Section 125 Integrated Part Trust or paid to the

employee at the time of retirement VEBA account. Employees hired prior

to January 1, 1995, shall receive a maximum of two (2) weeks gratuity pay,

from their sick leave bank, paid into the employee’s Section 125 Integrated

Part Trust or paid to the employee at the time of retirement VEBA account.

Upon retirement, any employee retiring with the maximum of one hundred

twenty (120) days total in their bank will also receive four (4) two (2) weeks

gratuity pay paid into the employee’s Section 115 Integrated Part Trust or

paid to the employee at the time of retirement (TA 8/8/14)

Appendix A

Salary Schedules

The City makes the following proposal on wages:

Effective 1/1/14 2.0%
Effective 1/1/15 0.0%

Added reopener language for mutual discussion to take place by 8/15/15
“me too” clause in reference to all other compensation agreed upon with IAFF

Effective 1/1/16 1.0%
Effective 1/1/17 1.0% (TA 8/8/14)

ARTICLE IX - HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT



Page 6 of 7

9.04 Detectives shall be allotted 15 administrative days each year, and others

including School Resource Officers, shall be allotted 18 days each year, at the

start of the year to be taken in one-half (½) hour or more increments. Time not

taken within the calendar year, or school contract year for School Resource

Officers, shall not be carried over into the next year. Sworn personnel who

normally work a 5/2-5/3 schedule that are temporarily assigned to a 5/2 schedule

working a 8 ½ hour day for 30 consecutive calendar days or more, will receive

one and one-half days off with pay per month. (TA 8/8/14)

ARTICLE XI - HOLIDAY PAY

11.02 Employees working a 5/2 schedule shall not receive any compensation for the

holidays if they do not work on that day except that if any holiday listed below

occurs during any one week vacation period, the employee will not be charged

vacation leave for such days. The employee will be required to use five (5)

vacation days for scheduling purposes within a thirty (30) day period of that

holiday if they wish to protect a one-week block of vacation. For the purpose of

this Article, full holidays are: (TA 8/8/14)

ARTICLE XX - PERSONNEL FILES

20.01 An employee shall receive a copy of everything put in his/her personnel file within

the Police Department and shall have an opportunity to respond in writing. The

employee must also sign all discipline or documents that may lead to discipline,

evaluations, and commendations materials placed into their file as an

acknowledgment of review, prior to placing such material in the personnel file.

Any employee may examine his/her file upon request to the Chief or his/her

designee. (TA 8/8/14)



Page 7 of 7

ARTICLE XIV - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

14.05 The term "immediate" family as used herein includes spouse, domestic partner

as defined in Wis. Stats. 40.02(21c) and 770.01(1), parents, step-parents and

grandparents of employee and spouse, children, step-children, current son-in-

law, current daughter-in-law, brothers, sisters, grandchildren, half-brothers and

sisters, foster parents, guardians and children of guardians. (TA 8/8/14)

14.07 The term "non-immediate" family as used herein includes, sister-in-law, brother-

in-law, step-brother, step-sister, foster parents and siblings, aunts and uncles.,

niece and nephew of the employee and the employee’s spouse. (TA 8/8/14)

ARTICLE XV - WORKERS’ COMPENSATION - SICK LEAVE

15.03 The condition in granting sick leave requires that the employee be ill or injured to

a degree that prevents him/her from performing his/her regularly assigned duty.

The employee shall call the officer in charge to notify him/her of the date he/she

expects to return to work, if he/she is able to do so, otherwise, the employee

shall call the officer in charge each day in advance so that arrangements can be

made for a substitute. As a condition of returning to regular duty from sick leave,

that exceeds three (3) working days, the Chief may require an officer to provide a

doctor's certificate of illness. (TA 8/8/14)


	Monday, November 17, 2014
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Introduction of Beloit Public Library Director Nick Dimassis (Laatz)
	b.	Proclamation recognizing the Beloit Memorial High School Concert Choir  (Luebke)
	c.	Presentation of the City and Vision Partner’s Rebranding Program  (Monica Krysztopa, Executive Director, Visit Beloit)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a.	Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a pick-up window in a CBD-2, Central Business District – Fringe, zoning district for the property located at 658 Fourth Street (Christensen) Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0
	b.	Resolution amending the HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Budget  (Christensen)

	5.	CITIZENS PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the regular meeting of November 3, 2014  (LeMire)
	b.	Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a drive-up automated teller machine  (ATM) in a CBD-1, Central Business District – Core, for the property located at 419 Pleasant Street  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	c.	Resolution approving a four-lot Certified Survey Map for property located at 2600 Coyote Run  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 7-0
	d.	Resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C13-15, Ute Standpipe Repainting  (Flesch)
	e.	Resolution approving Final Payment for Public Works Contract C14-06, Ritsher Street Sanitary Sewer Relay  (Flesch)

	7.	ORDINANCES
	a. Proposed Ordinance to amend various sections of 17.06 of the Code of General Ordinance of the City of Beloit pertaining to the regulation of Solid Waste  (Walsh)  First Reading, suspend the rules for Second Reading

	8.	APPOINTMENTS
	9.	COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION – none
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARD AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution authorizing reporting under the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Municipalities Continuing Disclosure Cooperation Initiative  (Miller)
	b.	Resolution declaring Official Intent to Reimburse Expenditures from proceeds of borrowing (Miller)
	c.	Resolution approving Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease with New Cingular Wireless for space on water tower site at 138 Mill Street  (Krueger)
	d.	Resolution approving Second Amendment to Equipment Location Lease with New Cingular Wireless for space on water tower site at 2995 Cranston Road  (Krueger)
	e.	Resolution adopting a Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of Beloit and the Wisconsin Professional Police Association/Law Enforcement Employee Relations Division (WPPA/LEER)  (Simpson)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

